N00189-15-R-0005
Supplemental Questions & Answers

1. Reference: In reviewing the solicitation it is not possible to determine the labor category mix for Contractor Site versus Government Site.

Question: Will the government provide the work site percentages for the labor categories?

ANSWER: The Government does not intend to provide a Government Site versus Contractor Site breakdown as the Government does not anticipate that contactors will ever be required to work from the contractor site. Although telework may be authorized for specific requirements, the Government will always allow contractors to work at the Government site. For the purposes of offeror’s cost proposal, all rates should be proposed at the Government site.  Please see Amendment 1. 

2. Reference: Page 55, Section J and solicitation Attachments II – VII and A, B, and D. There appears to be duplicate attachments released with the solicitation, some of which include “DRFT” in the file name.

Question: Will the government confirm that we should use the attachments that do not indicate “DRFT” in the file name?

ANSWER: All files with DRFT should be disregarded.  All draft documents from the DRAFT RFP have been removed.  

3. Reference: Page 69, I. General; page 72, (4) Proposal page limitations table and note; page 75, paragraph 3. On page 69, the solicitation states that we should submit our proposals in two separate volumes, which includes four separate Factors for Volume I. On page 72, the solicitation table combines the page count for Factors I and II (Corporate Experience and Past Performance) and indicates that “each Factor (Corporate Experience/Past Performance, Sample Tasks, and Small Business Participation Plan) shall be submitted in separate binders.” Further, page 75 states that “only a single set of up to five references shall be submitted for Corporate Experience and Past Performance.”

Question: Will the government confirm that we are to submit Factors I and II as one, combined binder for Corporate Experience/Past Performance, Factor III as one separate binder for Sample Tasks, and Factor IV as one separate binder for Small Business Participation (a total of three binders for Volume I)?

ANSWER: Correct.  In accordance with the solicitation, offers should combine Corporate Experience and Past Performance into one submission/binder.  Factor III and IV should each be in separate binders.  

4. Reference: In reviewing the solicitation it is not possible to determine how many awardees there will be.

Question: Will the government provide the number of anticipated awardees for this IDIQ?

ANSWER: At this time, the Government does not intend to identify the anticipated number of awardees for this IDIQ other than its stated intention in Section H to award to at least two small business offerors. 

5. Please advise if there is any Agency mandated Small Business Participation goals?  

ANSWER:  The RFP does not contain agency mandated small business participation goals.  IAW the RFP, offerors are required to submit their own small business participation goals. It is the goal of this solicitation that prime contractors subcontract with small businesses to the maximum extent practicable.  For other-than-small (large) prime contractors, the Small Business Subcontracting Plan goals shall be expressed in terms of whole dollars and percentages based on total planned subcontracting dollars.

6. Should the Offeror allocate specific hours to Small Business and Large Business subcontractors in N0018915R0005Attachment_IV_-_PIRMDS2_LABOR_RATE_TABLE.xlsx? The solicitation states: “The contracting officer will negotiate an acceptable small business subcontracting plan with all apparent successful large business offerors in accordance with FAR 19.702(a)(1).  Failure to negotiate an acceptable subcontracting plan will make the offeror ineligible for the award.”  In addition to the requirements of FAR 19.702(a)(1), please define what an “acceptable subcontracting plan” 

ANSWER: Offerors are required to submit a single FFP rate per labor category, inclusive of any anticipated subcontracting pricing, into Attachment IV, PIRMDS2 Firm Fixed Price Labor Rate Table.  Offerors are not required allocate specific hours anticipated to be subcontracted in Attachment IV.  Please see Amendment 1. 

Subcontracting plans will be evaluated IAW FAR 19.702(a)(1).  

7. Ref page 80 of 92 and Excel file: “i. ESTIMATED LEVEL OF EFFORT:  An offeror’s cost proposal shall use the duties and personnel qualifications defined in the Performance Work Statement, Attachment A – Labor Category Descriptions to develop pricing for the labor categories included in Attachment IV, PIRMSD2 Labor Rate Table.” Please confirm that it is mandatory that bidders bid the exact customer provided hours by Labor Cat from the N0018915R0005Attachment_IV_-PIRMDS2_LABOR_RATE_TABLE.xlsx file.

ANSWER:  IAW the RFP, offerors are required to use the estimated hours per labor category in Attachment IV, PIRMSD2 for their price/cost proposal. 

8. Please clarify the following statement that files can either be submitted as either a compatible Adobe PDF or Microsoft Office Suite 2010 or are both file types required:  “All electronic files and versions of offerors proposal shall be compatible with Adobe Acrobat Pro X and Microsoft Office Suite version 2010.”

ANSWER: Files can be submitted in either version (Word or Adobe PDF) except for Price/Cost proposal spreadsheets which must be submitted in Excel.  Please see amendment 1. 

9. Please confirm that Volume II, “Price/Cost Proposal  should be submitted in Adobe Acrobat Pro X and Microsoft Office Suite version 2010 with the spreadsheet content only being Microsoft Excel?

ANSWER: Correct.  With the exception of the price/cost spreadsheets, files can be submitted in either Word or Adobe PDF. Please see amendment 1. 

10. The RFP states that the Offeror shall insert the Government estimated ODC plug number in their proposed price in addition to any applicable General and Administrative (G&A) and/or Overhead (OH) rate applicable in accordance with FAR Part 31 and their accounting system. Please confirm that the total ODC plug number should be exactly the number provided in the N0018915R0005DRFTAttachment_IV_-_PIRMDS2_LABOR_RATE_TABLE.xlsx sheet and that approved disclosed G&A and/or OH is included in that number. 

ANSWER: The RFP has been amended to state the following:  “Offeror shall insert the Government estimated ODC plug number in their proposed cost/price proposal.  In addition within their cost proposal offerors shall identify any applicable General and Administrative (G&A) and/or Overhead (OH) rates in accordance with FAR Part 31 and their accounting system.  Please see Amendment 1. 
 
11. Only a subset of the documents that were released with the RFI earlier this year were subsequently released with the RFP on May 28.  For example, Attachments II, III, IV, VI and VII were not updated or release on May.   Could the Government please confirm that these documents are still valid?

ANSWER:  Final versions of all RFP and PWS attachments were released with the RFP on 27 May 2015.  From FBO.gov, offerors are routed to NECO.  In NECO please click “Click Here for Additional Documents” to access the list of attachments available for download. Final versions released on 27 May 2015 are the only documents that should be used. 

12. Regarding the statement in the RFP ‘failure to include an hourly rate for all of the provided labor categories within Attachment IV, PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table may deem the Offeror to be non-responsive”.  Is it sufficient that a Offeror, which consists of a prime and several subcontractors, each submit their version of Attachment IV such that all the labor rates are covered, or does the Government desire that the prime contractor’s Attachment IV reflect the proposed best rates for the entire team, which is supported by sealed bids from the subcontractors which include their Attachment IV reflecting only the their rates that were included on the prime’s Attachment IV?

ANSWER: IAW the RFP the prime contractor is required to submit a completed Attachment IV, PIRMSDS2 Firm Fixed Price Labor Rate Table with the fully burdened Firm Fixed Price rates.  Offerors are also required to submit their fully burdened Cost Plus Fixed Fee rates and the additional data for the cost portion of the proposal.  Paragraph 1, Basic Cost Information, under the Price/Cost Proposal requires offerors to submit all supporting documentation for prime and their subcontractors. Subcontractor cost breakdowns shall be submitted via sealed packages directly to the Contracting Office.  Please see amendment 1. 

13. Is the twenty page limit on Corporate Experience/Past Performance document inclusive of the one page Executive Summary?

ANSWER: IAW the solicitation offers are allowed 20 Pages which consists of the form, plus 3 additional pages per reference. 

14. Is the sample task maximum page count of 30 to include both sample tasks, or is the constraint 30 pages for each sample task?

ANSWER: A total of 30 pages are allowed for response to Factor III, Sample task. 

15. If our proposed staffing in response to a sample task requires a labor category not included in the PIRMSDS2 Labor Rate Table (Attachment IV), how should that be addressed?

ANSWER: The Government does not anticipate proposed staffing should include labor categories not defined in PWS Attachment C – Personnel Qualifications.  Please see Amendment 1.  

16. Reference item 2(a)(i) on page 78 of the solicitation (Direct Labor).  By ‘basis for the direct labor hours’, does the Government mean the number of productive hours that an employee will work to support this task (e.g. 1900/hours per year)?

ANSWER: The Government does not require the number of productive hours that an employee will work to support this task.  Rather, offerors are required to provide the basis used to develop the direct labor rate.  

17. Reference item 2(a)(iii) on page 78 of the solicitation (Direct Labor).  The Government is requesting ‘portion of time (hours) by labor category to be devoted to the proposed effort.  Is this not the number of hours per labor category that is specified in Attachment IV?  If not, what additional information is the Government seeking in response to this requirement?

ANSWER: Please see changes to the pricing instructions in Amendment 1.  Offerors are required to provide a cost proposal based on Attachment IX, CPFF Estimated Level of Effort. Cost proposals shall not exceed the estimated number of hours in Attachment IX.  Offerors shall provide sufficient information to allow the Government to perform an analysis of the proposed rate.  For example, offerors may have varying rates per FTE for a Senior Process Engineer in their cost proposal.  In this scenario, offerors must identify how many of the hours are estimated for each rate for a Senior Process Engineer.  However, the total number of hours per labor category is set and shall not be adjusted by offerors. 

18. Section 10.0 of the PWS states ‘NAVSUP BSC, Mechanicsburg PA is the primary site for performance’, however the solicitation requests labor rates to be provided for Washington DC also.  For the labor rates provided for Washington DC, is the place of performance also a Government facility, or will the Washington DC efforts be conducted from a contractor facility?

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 1. 

19. Question: Attachment VI Corporate Experience/Past Performance Information Form - Is aggregate dollar value of the contract the sole measure of magnitude (per Section M, Factor I, Corporate Experience)?  If not, can the Government please provide a list of all factors used in evaluating magnitude?

ANSWER: Dollar value is the sole measure of magnitude. 

20. Question:  Section M – Corporate Experience/Past Performance - Will the Government please confirm that the "Bus Warehouse" area of experience refers to the SAP Business Warehouse?

ANSWER:  SAP Business Warehouse is correct. Please see Amendment 1. 

21. Question: Form VII - Past Performance Report Form - Will the Government please clarify what entity information goes in under "Completed by" section? Also, the "Completed by" section appears twice in the document; should this information be provided twice?

ANSWER:  The individual that completes the “Past Performance Report Form” should put their identifying information in the “Completed by” section.  The duplicate “Completed by” section has been removed. Please see Amendment 1. 

22. Question: Section L.II(4), Proposal Page Limitations, states: “Graphics (including tables) in the proposal may use an alternative font with 8 point size type or larger.” Would it be acceptable to use 10 point font for the Corporate Experience/Past Performance Information Form?

ANSWER: The Government does not intend to change the font size for the Past Performance Information Form at this time.  IAW the RFP, the font size is 12 point font.  

23. The Instructions to Offerors (page 73) says that offerors are to submit one master CD ROM with three (3) separate files.  Are the three files for Corporate Experience/Past Performance, Sample Tasks, and the Small Business Participation Plan? If so, does the government want a separate CD for each volume?

ANSWER:  Offerors are required to submit one (1) CD with no less than four (4) separate files (Corporate Experience/Past Performance, Sample Tasks, Small Business Participation Plan, and Cost/Price Proposal).  The RFP has been corrected.  Please see Amendment 1. 

24. On Page 77 of the solicitation, Section II, Requirements for Proposal Content, Factor IV - Small Business Participation Plan it states: 
It is the goal of this solicitation that prime contractors subcontract with small businesses to the maximum extent practicable.  For other-than-small (large) prime contractors, the Small Business Subcontracting Plan goals shall be expressed in terms of whole dollars and percentages based on total planned subcontracting dollars. Of the total planned subcontracting dollars, the Small Business Subcontracting Plan shall include goals for Small Businesses, Small Disadvantaged Businesses, Woman-Owned Small Businesses, HubZone Small Businesses, Veteran Owned Small Businesses and Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Small Business.  The Government will consider prior achievement of small business subcontracting plan goals as well as the proposed dollar values and percentages related to this solicitation.  

Since this is an IDIQ with unknown total dollars by Task Order, is it permissible to list subcontractor plan goals for this solicitation in terms of percent rather than whole dollars?

ANSWER: IAW the RFP, offerors are required express small business subcontracting goals in terms of whole dollars and percentages based on total planned subcontracting dollars. 

25. The Past Performance Report Form includes two “Completed by:” sections.  Is this a duplication error?  If so, should offerors delete the repeated lines? If not, please clarify what information is required in those two sections.

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 21. 

26. In the solicitation Section L; Vol II, page 78, section 2 discusses the need for contractor to discuss level of effort; direct labor hours of percentage of effort: and portion of time.  Because the solicitation supplied hours for all labor categories, please clarify the requirement to discuss labor hours (basis of estimate) and level of effort.

ANSWER: Please see the answer to 17.

27. In the PWS (Attachment I), 10.0 Place of Performance, page 11 of 16, NAVSUP BSC, Mechanicsburg PA is listed as the primary site for performance.  It also says that services will also be required at numerous other CONUS locations. Given that the primary site is Mechanicsburg PA, request the government clarify the work to be performed in Washington, DC in the PWS?

ANSWER: The Government provided the estimated number of hours per labor category for work expected to be performed in Mechanicsburg, PA and Washington, DC.  The PWS has been amended to clarify this requirement. Please see amendment 1. 

28. In the PWS (Attachment I), 10.0 Place of Performance, page 11 of 16, NAVSUP BSC, Mechanicsburg PA is listed as the primary site for performance.  It also says that services will also be required at numerous other CONUS locations. Can we correctly assume that work performed at other CONUS location will be performed in a travel capacity?  If not, request the government provide a list of other CONUS sites where work may be performed, whether the work will be performed at contractor or government site and if the work is will require full time support?

ANSWER: Work in any location other than Mechanicsburg, PA or Washington, DC will be conducted in a travel capacity.  The PWS has been amended to clarify this requirement.  Please see amendment 1. 

29. Is a Prime respondent authorized to combine two contracts as ONE contractual reference if these work efforts demonstrate continuity of operations?  To clarify:  If the contractor performed on a base contract which transitioned to a new contract for the same Customer, with an nearly identical scope of performance, and the periods of performance of the two contracts ‘dovetailed’ in such a fashion that the same contractor team continued performing without interruption, will the Government recognize the combined Corporate Experience as one contiguous contractual reference in response to the following Section L response requirement?

ANSWER: No, IAW the RFP each contract would be considered a reference. 

30. Reference pages 75 of 92 (Section L) and 87 of 92 (Section M) in the RFP. Page 75 states “In addition to the information requested above, offerors shall contact their past performance references and request that each reference complete the attached “Past Performance Report Form” and e-mail the completed survey form directly to Ms. Chandra Brinkley at Chandra.Brinkley@navy.mil by the DUE DATE OF THIS SOLICITATION.” Page 87 states “In order to verify past performance information and determine the quality of the past performance submission, the Government may contact some or all of the references provided, as appropriate, and may collect information through questionnaires (i.e., the Past Performance Report Form), telephone interviews and existing data sources to include but not limited to Contractor Performance Assessment Reporting (CPARS).  The Government reserves the right to obtain information for use in the evaluation of past performance from any and all sources including sources outside of the Government. This past performance information will be used for the evaluation of past performance.”

Question: The Government has indicated it may use CPARS as an evaluation methodology of Contract Performance.  Some government customers are not willing to provide Past Performance Questionnaires when requested, stating they have already provided their evaluation of performance in their current CPAR.  Will the government accept a current CPAR as proof of a contractor’s performance in lieu of a Past Performance Questionnaire?

ANSWER: IAW the RFP, offerors shall contact their past performance references and request that each reference complete the attached “Past Performance Report Form.” Offerors are required to submit the Corporate Experience/Past Performance information Form with their proposal.  

31. Reserved. 

32. Reference pages 75 of 92 and 87 of 92 in the RFP as indicated above.

Question: If our customer has made the determination that they will not provide a PPQ because they have already provided a CPAR, will that referenced past performance still be evaluated? 

ANSWER: IAW the RFP, offeror are required to submit Past Performance Information Forms for past performance reference.  Upon receipt of those references the Government reserves the right to collect performance information through questionnaires (i.e., the Past Performance Report Form), telephone interviews and existing data sources to include but not limited to Contractor Performance Assessment Reporting (CPARS).  

33. Reference pages 75 of 92 and 87of 92 in the RFP as indicated above.

Question: If a CPAR is provided and not a PPQ, will that impact scoring of the past performance?

ANSWER: Failure to receive the Past Performance Report Form will not result in a negative impact on the past performance rating. 

34. Reference pages 75 and 76 of 92 in the RFP, and specifically for Sample Task 1.  The Government is requesting the contractor provide the number of hours for each labor category identified.  The number of hours for each labor category depends on sizing information on ITIMP, eRMS and CAVII.  This information would include:
a) the volume and variety of data transactions currently being processed and 
b) the number and complexity for the legacy applications.  Depending on the application, this would include approximate Source Lines of Code, Function Points, or Reports, Interface, Conversions, Enhancements, Forms and Workflows.

Question:  Will the government provide some volume, sizing and complexity information on 
the legacy environments?

ANSWER: As in many interface solution situations encountered by BSC, this information is not readily available.  Vendors shall demonstrate their understanding of IT system solutions by clearly stating any assumptions made for volume, size and complexity and articulating the relationship of these complexities to labor hours by category.  Please see amendment 1. 

35. Reference pages 78 0f 92 in the RFP, any and all subcontracts shall be identified and priced in the proposal.  Subcontracts (regardless of dollar value) shall be adequately documented.  The same level of detailed cost information required in this solicitation of the prime contractor, to include certified cost and pricing data if required, shall be provided by each subcontractor proposed for this effort.  Subcontractor cost/price breakdowns shall be submitted via sealed packages directly to the Contracting Office.  See section 2.c., below for additional information regarding subcontracts

Question:  Given the requirement for subcontractors to submit sealed packages and be priced in the proposal, how does the Government want offerors to represent the subcontractors rates within the proposed rates that will be submitted in the pricing template?

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 12.

36. Reference page 12 of 16, Section 12 of the PWS that specifies all positions as noncritical-sensitive, and that contractors are not required to possess a security clearance, but that future tasks may require a security clearance. 
 
Question: Will the government clarify what security clearance is required for each position?

ANSWER: IAW the RFP, A security clearance is not required.  

37. Does the Navy tripwire policy apply to this RFQ? If so, what is the tripwire rate that should apply?

ANSWER: The NAVSUP tripwire policy applies to this requirement. 

38. In Section L, Corporate Experience/Past Performance Notes, on page 75, "Additionally, offerors may submit, as part of its five (5) corporate experience/past performance contracts, up to two (2) collections of task orders placed under a single award ID/IQ or single award BPA."

Please consider allowing the use of a collection of task orders placed under a single ID/IQ or single BPA whether awards were made to multiple companies or not.  A collection of task orders from a single multiple award ID/IQ would be more relevant to this procurement because the task orders would have been competed.

ANSWER: Section L has been amended to allow a collection of task orders from Single or Multiple Award IDIQs to be submitted as a single source. Please see amendment 1. 

39. Please confirm that the place of performance for all hours the Labor Rate Table is at the Government site.

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 1. 

40. Reference: Solicitation Section L.III. Volume I, Factor II – Past Performance, Past Performance / Corporate Experience Notes (pg 74) and PWS Paragraph 5.0 (5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4) (pgs 7-10).

Question: There appears to be overlapping and in some cases missing requirements in the two sets of requirements noted above.  Will Government map or align the two sets of requirements in order to avoid confusion and potential misrepresentation by offerors?

ANSWER: In terms of scope, relevant corporate experience/past performance is that which demonstrates recent or past work efforts performed by the offeror or its proposed major subcontractors in support of the areas listed under Corporate Experience/Past Performance Notes.  

41. Reference: Solicitation Section L.III. Volume I, Factor IV – Small Business Participation Plan (SBPP) and Section M. Factor IV – SBPP.

Question: Will the Government identify minimum acceptable goals for SBPP to include (for example) Small Disadvantaged Businesses, Small Women-Owned Businesses, HUB Zone Businesses? 

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 5. 

42. Reference:		Section H, p. 18 AUTOMATIC RESERVE

The Government intends to issue an IDIQ contract award to at least two small business offerors. How many large business awards does the Government intend to make?

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 4.

43. Reference:		Section I, Contract Clauses, p.22

Question: 	 The RFP properly includes FAR 52.244-6 Subcontracts for Commercial Items which states unequivocally that commercial items subcontractors do not have to provide cost detail for their commercial prices. This conflicts with Section L, Volume II Cost/Price Proposal requirements on page 78 that subcontractors have to provide cost breakdown. Please confirm that Commercial Items subcontractors may be proposed under all contract types in accordance with the provisions of the FAR clause, and are therefore exempt from the Section L requirements to provide cost breakdowns and other cost backup. 

ANSWER: Offerors are not required to provide cost details for the firm fixed price portion of the price proposal. However, for the cost portion offerors shall provide cost detail for all proposed subcontracts in order to facilitate a cost realism analysis. 

44. Reference:		Section L, Volume II Cost/Price Proposal, p. 77

Question:	The solicitation’s pricing attachments allow room for one rate for each labor category for each location and contract type. The instructions, however, are unclear as to what the Government intends in terms of the rates the offeror enters – for example – the rates entered could be prime only, or the result of an assignment to prime or sub, or blended, or a weighted average.

Suggest the instructions in Section L be modified to clarify the requirement. Recommend this be done by contract type. 

ANSWER: For the firm fixed price portion, offerors shall propose a single rate per labor category.  For the cost portion, offeror’s proposal must contain sufficient information to allow for the Government to perform an analysis of the proposed cost and to determine cost reasonableness and cost realism to include, at a minimum, the information listed in Section L. Subcontractors shall provide the same level of detailed cost information required in this solicitation of the prime contractor via a sealed cost proposal sent directly to the contracting office.  Please see amendment 1.   

45. Due to the nature of Cost Plus contracts, suggest the Cost Plus rates be team-member specific (i.e., each team member completes the attachments with their rates). The subcontractor submissions are then, in turn, burdened by the prime to create the evaluated rates to the Government. Hours are assigned to each team member (prime and sub) so that each teammates’ cost can be represented in the evaluated price within the additional summary which will be necessary to represent the complete team’s Cost-Plus evaluated price.

ANSWER: Please see amendment 1 as the pricing spreadsheet for the cost portion has been removed.  The Government does not intend to tell offerors how to propose.  IAW Section L, Offeror’s proposal must contain sufficient information to allow for the Government to perform an analysis of the proposed cost and to determine cost reasonableness and cost realism.

46. For the Fixed Price locations, suggest each team be allowed to determine the most appropriate rate to propose for each labor category. Because this creates a team-wide ceiling rate, please confirm that subcontractors do not complete the FFP portions of Attachment 4. 

ANSWER: Offerors are required to proposed a single firm fixed price rate per labor category.  

47. Reference:		Section B and Attachment IV – PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table

Question:	The FAR in 16.202-1, acknowledges that Firm Fixed Price contracts place “upon the contractor maximum risk and full responsibility for all costs and resulting profit or loss. It provides maximum incentive for the contractor to control costs and perform effectively and  imposes a minimum administrative burden upon the contracting parties.”

With this in mind, Offerors should be allowed to determine FFP ceiling rates that are not based on cost. Instead, the prime will have to consider the impact of the rate ceilings across the entire team; consider the competitive nature of the bid; and incorporate all applicable risk factors into the decision-making process.  Please confirm that rates for the FFP CLINs are not cost-based and thus excluded from the Cost Summary by CLIN requirement

Under the circumstances, by combining two significant factors : (1) adequate price competition and (2) confirmation that the resulting Firm Fixed Price (FFP) rate card shall constitute contract ceiling rates is sufficient justification per the FAR of fair and reasonable prices.

ANSWER: The firm fixed price rates are not cost based. 

48. Reference:		Section L Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal, p. 77

Question:	The RFP instructions clearly indicate that subcontracts should be priced into the proposal, and that the same level of detailed cost information shall be provided by each subcontractor.

However, the rest of the Cost/Price instructions for the Prime do not clearly indicate how subcontractors are to be priced into the proposal. Please confirm that Offerors have discretion in the methodology and approach for including subcontractors into the price/cost proposal, both for the CPFF and FFP labor CLINs, so long as they are represented and priced in the proposal.

ANSWER: Offerors are required to provide a single Firm Fixed Price rate for each labor category, inclusive of subcontractor rates.  However, offeror’s have discretion on the methodology and approach for including subcontractors into the cost proposal so long as the required information detailed in Section L is provided.  

49. Reference:		Section L Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal, p. 77

RFP Reference:
Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal instructions state:
- The offeror shall enter the fully burdened hourly FFP and CPFF (separate tabs) labor rate into Attachment IV, PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table.  
- The cost/price proposal shall support the anticipated level of effort provided in the Governments labor estimate in Attachment IV, PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table.

1. Basic Cost Information:
Any and all subcontracts shall be identified and priced in the proposal.  Subcontracts (regardless of dollar value) shall be adequately documented.  The same level of detailed cost information required in this solicitation of the prime contractor, to include certified cost and pricing data if required, shall be provided by each subcontractor proposed for this effort.  

Question:	Attachment IV is currently structured such that the company completing the Labor Rate table is to enter one rate per labor category, per year. This does not support traceability of labor rates back to the Prime and their subcontractors as costs are unique to each company generating a rate. Please confirm that offerors are able to modify the Labor Rate table as necessary to meet the apparent requirements of the RFP to provide the pricing of subcontractors and the supporting detailed cost information of the CPFF rates.

ANSWER: The pricing instructions have been amended. Please see amendment 1. 

50. Reference:		Section L Factor IV – Small Business Participation Plan, p. 76

Question:	The RFP states “The level of enforceable commitment the prime has to use small business concerns (for example, enforceable commitments will be weighted more heavily than non-enforceable ones);” 

Please define "enforceable" commitments as used in the preceding sentence.  

Is this the small business goals that companies sign up to in their subcontracting plan?  
Does the Government want primes to commit percentages of work to a particular small business and not reserve the right to compete that business in the future or move to another subcontractor if one is not performing well?

ANSWER: Offerors are required to demonstrate their commitment to use small businesses during the performance of this contract by including the level of enforceable commitments to small business concerns in their proposal.  Demonstration of this commitment does not prohibit offerors from competing business amongst subcontractors in the future.  

51. Reference:		Section L Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal, p. 79

Question:	Can the Government clarify what it means when it says that “Subcontracts (regardless of dollar value) shall be adequately documented.”  Given that this is an IDIQ contract, what subcontract documentation do you expect to be provided and can you clarify what would be adequate in order to be compliant with the requirement considering there are no negotiated subcontracts at this point in the procurement cycle?

ANSWER: IAW with the RFP, large business offerors are required to provide subcontracting plan and all offerors are required to provide a small business participation plan.  Any and all subcontracts shall be identified and priced in the proposal.  Subcontracts (regardless of dollar value) shall be adequately documented.  The same level of detailed cost information required in this solicitation of the prime contractor, to include certified cost and pricing data if required, shall be provided by each subcontractor proposed for this effort.  Subcontractor cost breakdowns shall be submitted via sealed packages directly to the Contracting Office.  

52. Reference:		Section L Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal, p. 79

Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal, section 2.c states, “c. Subcontracts: A precise description of proposed services or materials that are subcontracted must be provided.  For all subcontracts proposed, provide the following specific information:  i. A clear description of the work to be performed.”

Question:	Given this is an IDIQ contract award and the specific task order requirements are not known at this time, an Offeror can only represent a subcontractor in RFP labor categories for which they anticipate subcontracting future work to them.  Additionally, it is in the best interest of the Government for the Prime to continue to compete their IDIQ subcontractors at the task order level, in order to obtain the best price for the Government once specific requirements are known. Therefore, we believe it was not the Government’s intent for the Prime  to provide a precise description of proposed services or materials, and a description of the work to be performed at the IDIQ contract level. The inclusion of proposed subcontractors in the offer against projected labor categories and labor hours provides the only information available at this time. Therefore, we respectfully request deletion of any other requirements cited above in the RFP and to include such requirements at the individual task order level. 

ANSWER: See the answer to question 51. 

53. Reference:		Section L Instructions Volume II – Cost Price Proposal, p. 77

Question:	FAR 15.305 Proposal Evaluation, (1) Cost or Price Evaluation states that:
“Normally, competition establishes price reasonableness. Therefore, when contracting on a firm-fixed-price or fixed-price with economic price adjustment basis, comparison of the proposed prices will usually satisfy the requirement to perform a price analysis, and a cost analysis need not be performed. …. When contracting on a cost-reimbursement basis, evaluations shall include a cost realism analysis to determine what the Government should realistically expect to pay for the proposed effort, the offeror’s understanding of the work, and the offeror’s ability to perform the contract.”

Please confirm the Government is performing cost realism on the Cost-Plus Fixed Fee rates and a price reasonableness determination on the FFP rates, in accordance with FAR 15.305.

ANSWER:  Correct, the Government intends to conduct a cost realism on CPFF rates and price reasonableness determination on the entire price/cost proposal. 

54. Reference:		Section L – Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal p. 79 and Attachment IV – PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table

Question:	The RFP requires offerors to apply indirect costs (G&A, etc.) to Travel and ODCs. In addition, primes will have to apply indirect costs to their subcontractors in accordance with their disclosure statements.  Attachment 4 in the RFP does not provide fields to add the required indirect cost burdens. Please confirm offerors are to modify Attachment 4 to add additional rows/columns as necessary to account for  the indirect cost burden.

ANSWER: Offerors are not to modify ODC and Travel amounts in Attachment IV. Rather, within offeror’s cost proposal the G&A and OH rate they intend to apply to travel and ODCs must be identified.  If those rates are not identified, G&A and OH on travel and ODCs will be considered unallowable. Please see amendment 1.

55. Reference:		Section L – Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal p. 77

Question:	The solicitation requires rates to be rounded to 2 decimal places. This will invariably result in rounding differences between the Cost Summary by CLIN and the evaluated price in Attachment IV. Please confirm that the Government is anticipating these rounding differences, and that it is the total price from Attachment 4 that will be used in the price evaluation.

ANSWER:  IAW the RFP, offerors are required to round all rates to two decimal points in Attachment IV and reconcile any pricing discrepancies/rounding issues prior to submitting its price proposal. Any variances in offerors cost proposal shall be clearly explained. 

56. Reference:		Section L Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal, p. 78-79

Question:	The RFP requires extensive detail to support rates when a negotiated indirect rate agreement does not exist. Please confirm that Government-issued Forward Pricing Rate Recommendation is sufficient to meet the requirement for an FPRA and that the extensive detail regarding indirect rates is not required as part of Volume II.

ANSWER: IAW the RFP, a current FPRR or FPRA will be reviewed to determine if it is current, accurate, and complete in terms of this RFP.  Please see amendment 1.  

57. Reference:		Section L Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal, p. 78

Recommendation: Please confirm that offerors may represent proposed wages based on hourly direct labor rates from their existing forward pricing rate recommendation or forward pricing rate agreement in accordance with a DCMA-approved estimating system.

ANSWER: The government does not intend to advise offerors how to price the proposal.  However, a current RPRR or RPRA will be considered in the evaluation. 

58. Reference:		Section L Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal, p. 78

Question:	Given that this is an IDIQ contract award and the work effort will be performed at the task order level, please confirm that the requirement to project "salary charged to the effort" will be removed from the IDIQ and introduced at the task order level.

ANSWER: The RFP has been amended to remove “The total annual salary charged to the effort.”  Please see amendment 1.

59. Reference:		Section M Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal Evaluation Criteria, p. 89

Recommendation: Section M states that "Labor will be evaluated on the basis of 100% straight time. Uncompensated overtime and uncompensated overtime rates will not be used in the evaluation."

A review of the solicitation shows that FAR clause, 52.222-2, Payment for Overtime Premiums, is included in the solicitation, and FAR clause 52.237-10, Uncompensated Overtime, is not. 

This would imply that the evaluation requirement is referencing Payment for Overtime Premiums where the government has stated that no overtime premium will be paid. Please confirm.

If that is not the case, please clarify this reference by including FAR clause 52.237-10 (March 2015) in the RFP, and reconciling Section M with that provision, which states that the uncompensated overtime rate shall be applied to all proposed hours (52.237-10 (b)(1)).

ANSWER:  Labor will be evaluated on the basis of 100% straight time. Uncompensated overtime and uncompensated overtime rates will not be used in the evaluation. FAR provision 52.237-10 is not applicable to this acquisition.  

60. Reference:		Attachment IV – PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table

Question:	If offerors propose IAW the hours and IDIQ ceiling dollars, the resulting (approximate) rate-per-hour (RPH) is $133.  How will the offeror’s submissions be viewed if the average RPH is $125 or $175? Will additional or less risk be assigned? Please explain.

ANSWER: The Government will conduct an analysis of all cost/price proposals IAW the evaluation criteria stated in the RFP. The government does not intend to advise offerors how to propose. 

61. Reference:		Attachment IV – PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table

Question:	All hours in Attachment 4, by labor category, must be priced. Therefore, in order to accommodate required subcontractor pricing for FFP labor rates, FFP hours are to be allocated across each teammate by labor category. 

Please confirm that if hours were not allocated to a particular teammate for a labor category during the IDIQ proposal phase, that teammate would not be precluded from using that sub/labor category during the resulting contract.

ANSWER: Subcontractors would not be precluded from using labor categories that were not originally priced by the subcontractor so long as the proposed firm fixed price labor rate was not exceeded in the task order price proposal.  	

62. Reference:		Attachment IV – PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table

Please confirm whether the Attachment IV Labor Rate Table is to be priced for Government or Contractor Site performance or both.

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 1. 
	
63. Reference:		Attachment C – Personnel Qualifications IDIQ PIRMDS2 12-8-14

Recommendation: A number of the labor category descriptions appear have highly varied education requirements, including some categories that have very specific education requirements. We are concerned that the overly specific requirements favor incumbent contractor staff who meet these specific degree requirements. This will naturally limit the ability for new people to enter the program and work on the contract. Non-incumbent contractors will then be forced to bid higher rates due to the risk and increased cost of needing to find / identify / hire a potentially small pool of people who meet the highly specific education and experience requirements.

Some categories, such as the Data Modeler, Process Engineer, Enterprise Architect are very specific about the degree/major type (e.g. Business, operations management, Computer Science, etc.) and limit the acceptable degrees to a small number of options.

We respectfully recommend that the specific degree / major requirements be revised to incorporate “or other relevant discipline” to ensure quality resources are not excluded due to a lack of the specific major associated with their degree and to promote consistency with other labor category requirements in this RFQ.

ANSWER: Attachment C – Personnel Qualifications IDIQ PIRMDS2 has been amended.  Please see amendment 1. 

64. Reference:		Attachment C – Personnel Qualifications IDIQ PIRMDS2 12-8-14

Question:  Roles 7 (Data Management SME) and 9 (Data Analyst) have different titles but the same descriptions, including the Minimum and General Experience, Functional Responsibility and Required Education.  It appears that Role 7, Data Management SME, is likely intended to have more experience than role 8, Senior Data Analyst, which has more experience than role 9, Data Analyst.  Can the government clarify the descriptions of roles 7, 8 and 9 to ensure the right level of experience will be bid to these roles?

ANSWER: Changes have been made to Data Management SME.  Please see amendment 1. 

65. Reference:		Attachment C – Personnel Qualifications IDIQ PIRMDS2 12-8-14

Labor Categories 26 and 27 are titled “Programmer/Configure BASIS [Senior/Junior] or Other COTS Equivalent,” however, the Functional Responsibility references and describes roles titled “Senior [Junior] Software Engineer.” 

Please clarify the titles and/or descriptions for roles 26 and 27. Are these Programmers or Senior/Junior Software Engineers?

ANSWER: The terminology used is reflective of cross-platform multi-use programmer, software engineers needed to provide development work for total software lifecycle support.

66. Reference:		PWS, 10. Place of Performance

“Services will also be required at numerous other CONUS locations.”
If tasks at locations other than Mechanicsburg, PA, or Washington, DC, will be FFP, please confirm that Washington DC ceiling rates will apply due to the unique nature of the Mechanicsburg market.

ANSWER:  Please see the answer to question 27.

67. Reference:		Section L, II. REQUIREMENTS FOR PROPOSAL CONTENT, (4)        

Proposal Page Limitations, page 72

The RFP states that the pricing volume should be in Excel. It also states “The cost/price proposal shall include all elements of cost and such other cost information as considered appropriate to support the Offeror’s proposal.” 

Please confirm that offerors can submit the supporting material in Word/PDF

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 8. 

68. Reference:		Section L, III. Proposal Content, Volume II – Price/Cost Proposal, 

Basic Cost Information, page 78
Please allow the Prime contractor to deliver Sealed packages of teammates with the final proposal submission package.

ANSWER: No, IAW the RFP, Subcontractor cost breakdowns shall be submitted via sealed packages directly to the Contracting Office.

69. Reference:		Section L, II. REQUIREMENTS FOR PROPOSAL CONTENT

Please allow us to submit a transmittal/cover letter in the Non-Price/Cost Proposal.

ANSWER: IAW the RFP, Offerors are permitted to submit no more than one page for each of the following which will not be included in the page count: a cover sheet, list of tables, list of figures, compliance matrix, table of contents, tabs, and dividers. 

70. (PWS pg. 11, Travel 11) If required, will the Government reimburse consultants’ weekly travel expenses to the Government work sites?

ANSWER: IAW the RFP, the primary place of performance is Mechanicsburg and the secondary place of performance is Washington, DC.  The task order will indicate the primary place of performance for the task in the task order PWS.  Travel to the primary place of performance for the task will not be reimbursed.  Travel to locations outside of Mechanicsburg, PA or Washington, DC, will be reimbursed on a Cost basis in accordance with the terms of the Federal Travel Regulation (FTR) if required.  

71. (Attachment IV PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table)  What is the difference between the FFP and CPFF cost in the Labor Rates Table?

ANSWER: Amendment 1 changed Attachment IV to remove the CPFF tables.  Offerors shall complete Attachment IV, PIRMDS2 Firm Fixed Labor Rate Table by inputting their fully burdened FFP rates.  Attachment IX, CPFF Estimated Level of Effort has been added to the RFP attachments to provide the estimated number of hours per labor category for CPFF portion of the contract.  Please see amendment 1.  

72. (Attachment IV PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table)  What cost should we use in the labor rate table? Government site or Contractor Site?

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 1. 

73. (RFP pg. 85, Section M, Subfactor II, Past Performance) In order to capitalize on the thorough contractor performance assessments already available for prime vendors and to reduce the additional workload on the Government, will you consider CPARs as adequate alternatives to the Past Performance Report Form (N0018915R0005Attachment_VII_-_PAST_PERFORMANCE_REPORT_FORM)?

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 30.

74. (RFP pg. 15, Section G) Is the street address listed for the PCO is correct? If so, the zip code should be changed from 23451 to 23511.

ANSWER: The correct zip code is 23511.  Please see amendment 1. 

75. (RFP pg. 50, Section I) Was it intended to specify a 12 month period, 13 OCT 2020 to 12 OCT 2021 or a 6 month period for the ordering period specified after “52.217-8 (6 months)”?

ANSWER: 252.216-7006 has been amended. Please see Amendment 1. 

76. (RFP pg.73, Section L) What are the three separate files associated with the note  “** Offerors are to submit one master CD ROM with three (3) separate files”? The note is referred to 4 times on the preceding page, which points to having 4 separate files, the three Volume I Word files and one Volume II Excel file.  However an additional file providing cost narrative/details will be required to be compliant with Section L, Volume II Price/Cost Proposal instructions.  Please clarify.

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 23. 

77. (N0018915R0005Attachment_I_-_PWS.docx, Pg. 5 – Bottom of page, “provide the ability to deliver solutions via a variety of contractor support service approaches including:  surge support, blended government and contractor teams, software as a service, and completely outsourced solutions.”)  Will the support services approach be identified on a task order basis?   These approaches require contractor to provide different management approaches?

ANSWER: Correct, as a service provider to other government organizations, BSC will determine its resourcing approach on a “per project” basis.  This will result in a “per task order” basis for contractor support service approaches.  Vendors will provide management approaches as requested and defined within each task order.

78. (RFP pg. 76, Factor IV – Small Business Participation Plan) :  Are offerors expected to utilize the Section B values calculated in Attachment IV to demonstrate the dollar amount participation of our small business partners?

ANSWER: The Government does not intend advise offerors how to propose. 

79. (RFP pg. 76, Factor IV – Small Business Participation Plan) :  Has the Government established minimum small business participation targets by socio-economic classifications?

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 5.

80. (RFP pg. 77, Factor IV – Small Business Participation Plan) :  Has the Government established minimum small business percentage goals by socio-economic classifications for the Small Business Subcontracting Plans?

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 5.

81. (RFP pg. 78, Volume II – Cost/Price Proposal): The instructions require the costs to “be broken down by cost element for each Contract Line Item Number (CLIN).  These elements shall at a minimum include, as applicable: direct labor, other direct cost, travel, subcontracts, indirect cost and rates, and fee.”  Attachment IV only requires a labor rate for each category; it doesn’t include a format to demonstrate the required cost breakdown.  Is this necessary for a competitive solicitation, and if so, will the Government please provide the format? 

ANSWER: The Government does not intend to provide a format for the required additional cost information. Offerors are required to submit the information in the format of their choice. Please see amendment 1. 

82. (RFP pg. 78, Volume II – Cost/Price Proposal): The instructions require that “any and all subcontracts shall be identified and priced in the proposal” with the “same level of detailed cost information required in this solicitation of the prime contractor.”  Attachment IV only requires rates from the Prime, which is typical for this type of IDIQ contract.  Is it correct to assume that only one set of rates will be applied to the awarded contract, and that the subcontractors rates are not necessary for this proposal? 

ANSWER: Subcontractor rate information is required for the cost proposal. Please see amendment 1.  

83. (RFP pg. 79, Volume II – Cost/Price Proposal): The instructions require “a precise description of proposed services or materials that are subcontracted.”  Please provide clarification on what is required from each subcontractor and how they are to be represented or incorporated in the Prime’s cost since only one set of rates is being proposed.  

ANSWER: Please see amendment 1. 

84. (RFP pg. 72, Section L, II (4)): Will the government allow the offeror to utilize the 20 page count limitation for Factor I&II in which ever manner the offeror sees fit to meet the requirements. Currently the RFP states that each reference should include “(Form, plus 3 additional pages per reference)”. Respectfully request the government allow the offeror to provide the “Form” for all 5 references and utilize the remaining 15 pages as the offeror deems fit. 

Respectfully request the government allow the Offeror to provide an additional 2 pages to introduce their Team and the Team’s value proposition to the government. 

ANSWER: At this time the Government does not intend to increase the page count. 

85. (RFP pg. 73, Section L, III, Volume I): In Section L, the RFP states “In terms of scope and magnitude, relevant past performance/corporate experience is that which demonstrates recent or past work efforts performed by the offeror or its proposed major subcontractors that have an aggregate value of at least $2.5M in support of the areas listed below.” Is the $2.5M the aggregate across all five (5) references or each individual reference? Please clarify. 

ANSWER: IAW the RFP, the value of all five submission will be considered in the aggregate to determine relevance in magnitude. 

86. (RFP pg. 75, Section L, III (Volume I)): The RFP states “up to two (2) collections of task orders placed under a single award ID/IQ or single award BPA.” Can the Offeror combine the 2 task orders under a single award ID/IQ and represent that as one (1) of the five (5) contract references? 

ANSWER: IAW the RFP, offers can combine task orders from an IDIQ or BPA to submit as one reference. 

87. RFP, Section I, pages 72-73, states that Hardcopy Proposal Quantities for the Factors in Volume I (Corporate Experience/Past Performance, Sample Tasks, and Small Business Participation) are “1 Original, 5 Copies, 1 Electronic on CD ROM**” and that the Hardcopy Proposal Quantities for the Price/Cost Proposal in Volume II are “1 Original, 1 Copy, 1 Electronic on CD ROM**”.  RFP has “**” in both place and states “** Offerors are to submit one master CD ROM with three (3) separate files.” Question:  Please clarify the number of files expected on the CD ROM.  Based on other instructions, more than 3 files are required on the CD ROM (three Word/PDF files for Volume I, and one Word/PDF file for Volume II as well as the requested Microsoft Excel file).

ANSWER: Please see the answer to question 23.  

88. RFP, Section I, page 72, states the Page Limit for the Past Performance Factor in Volume I is 20 pages.  Question:  As it is particularly incumbent on small businesses to adequately address their corporate experience, will the Government consider increasing the page count by 2 pages?  

ANSWER: At this time the Government does not intend to increase the page count. 

89. RFP, Section I, page 73 states “In terms of scope and magnitude, relevant past performance/corporate experience is that which demonstrates recent or past work efforts performed by the offeror or its proposed major subcontractors that have an aggregate value of at least $2.5M in support of the areas listed below.”  Question: Is this an aggregate annual value of at least $2.5M? 

ANSWER: IAW the RFP, magnitude will be evaluated based on the aggregate value. 

90. RFP, Section I, page 75 states “Additionally, for each contract submitted offerors shall include relevant contract documentation, e.g., Performance Work Statement (PWS), substantiating the work performed.   This contract documentation shall not count against the Corporate Experience/Past Performance page limitation.”  Questions: If an offeror submits two IDIQ references, each with a collection of Task Orders the supporting PWS documentation could represent a significant page count/file size.  What are the size limitations for electronic submission? Can the PWS documentation be included in a separate file(s) on the CD ROM?  Would the Government consider excluding including this documentation in the hard copies?

ANSWER: The electronic submission file size is dependent on the CD offerors choice to use. The PWS documentation can be submitted in separate files on the CD.  IAW the RFP the documentation must be submitted with the hard copies. 

91. RFP, Section I, page 76, provides limited information on Sample Task Order 1.  Questions:  Can the Government provide additional information related to this task?  In particular:

a. What are the number of Legacy source systems and the related database per object?
b. What are the master, transaction, documents and historical data volumes?
c. If you are migrating closed transactions into the Target system, are they in the same legacy systems as the source data?
d. Will there be any changes in structures like chart of accounts, org structure etc?
e. Who will perform the data extracts/load to/from the source/target system(s)?
f. What is the volume of data which is considered business complete/closed?
g. What is the list of objects that are ready for archiving?

ANSWER:  Please see the answer to Question 34.  

92. RFP, Section I, page 76, provides limited information on Sample Task Order 2.  

Questions:  Can the Government provide additional information related to this task?  In particular:

h. Is there any kind of Data Governance organization within NAVSUP?  If so, please describe.
i. What, if any, Data Governance and Data Archiving systems / software solutions are in place?  Please list.
j. Are any data quality monitoring tools/software being utilized?  If so, please identify.
k. What, if any, data quality initiatives have been undertaken in the last 3 years (e.g., data governance process development, data governance organization implementation, data cleansing/enrichment)?
l. What, if any, metrics are currently used on to report data quality?  Please list.

ANSWER: Please see the answer to Question 34.  Vendors shall clearly state assumptions made in the response. Please see amendment 1. 

93. In PWS, Section 1.0, page 1, states “NAVSUP Business Systems Center (BSC) is the preferred Information Technology (IT), Information Management (IM) and Information Systems (IS) provider for architecting, integrating, sustaining, and improving applications, infrastructures, and business process services to Navy, Department of Defense (DOD), and multi-national customers.” Question:  Please confirm whether or not NAVSUP BSC is currently undergoing or planning to obtain control reviews (e.g. SSAE-16) for the services provided to DOD and multi-national customers.  

ANSWER: BSC cannot provide the requested information at this time.

94. With the government consider extending the due date until July 12th to allow offerors time to address impact of Government answers to questions in their responses?

ANSWER: At this time the Government does not intend to extend the closing date of the RFP. 

95. Amendment 1 to the subject solicitation released on Saturday contained a revised version of the Past Performance Form.  Will Government accept the already submitted version of the form or should offerors request references to resubmit using the revised form?

ANSWER: The Government will accept either version of the Past Performance Report Form. 

96. Attachment N0018915R00050001Attachment_IX_-_CPFF_Estimated_LOE.xls includes only one column of estimated hours for each site.  How does the Government prefer the CPFF cost totals be entered and/or allocated in Section B for the option period CLINs (2002, 3002, 4002 and 5002)?  

ANSWER: Attachment IX provides the estimated annual level of effort.  Please see amendment 2 for clarification. 

97. Could you confirm that the estimated hours reflected in the new Attachment IX are the estimated hours for the base year and each option year?  Or are these the total number of hours for the entire contract?

ANSWER:  Please see the answer to question 96. 

98. The Amendment 1 - ATTACHMENT IV – PIRMDS2 FIRM FIXED PRICE LABOR RATE TABLE.XLS provides the government estimated FFP Hours per Year for all Labor Categories.  The Amendment 1 - ATTACHMENT IX – CPFF ESTIMATED LEVEL OF EFFORT provides the government estimated CPFF Hours in one column without any indication if it is for all years or 1 year.  Answer to Question 71 states that Attachment IX, CPFF Estimated Level of Effort has been added to the RFP attachments to provide the estimated number of hours per labor category for CPFF portion of the contract.

Please indicate which Year/s (CLINS) the hours in columns B in ATTACHMENT IX – CPFF ESTIMATED LEVEL OF EFFORT.xls are to be used for?  Are the hours in ATTACHMENT IX – CPFF ESTIMATED LEVEL OF EFFORT.xls for the Base Year or to be divided among all years in the PoP?  It is unclear for the CPFF portion of the Total Evaluated Price (TEP) and the CLINS how the hours should be used.

Please provide an updated ATTACHMENT IX – CPFF ESTIMATED LEVEL OF EFFORT.xls that reflects the hours, years, and, CLINs the government wishes bidders to use to provide a fully burdened CPFF rate for each labor category

	ANSWER:  Please see the answer to question 96. 

99. In Amendment 1 when the government broke up the Attachment IV PIRMDS2 into 2 separate files - Amendment 1 - ATTACHMENT IV – PIRMDS2 FIRM FIXED PRICE LABOR RATE TABLE.XLS and ATTACHMENT IX – CPFF ESTIMATED LEVEL OF EFFORT.  It seems the Summary Table and Section B Amounts tabs were deleted - these tabs are not in either file now.  

Please provide final/updated Summary/Section B Amounts tables/tabs or a file, so that there is no confusion on what will be evaluated for the Total Evaluated Price and what bidders are to use to complete the B Tables.

ANSWER: IAW Amendment 1 to the solicitation, offerors are required to complete the schedule B as follows:

“Offerors shall complete the Firm Fixed Price CLINS in the schedule B with sum of each year in Attachment IV, PIRMSD2 Firm Fixed Price Labor Rate Table.  Offerors shall plug in the sum of their total estimated cost for the CPFF CLINs in the Schedule B.  The ODC and Travel amounts referenced above shall be used to complete the schedule B.”   

100. RFP References:  

 (Reference 1) Section B - Supplies or Services and Prices (pg 2 of 94 in original RFP)

 (Reference 2) 252.216-7006  ORDERING (MAY 2011) (pg 4 of 26 in RFP Amendment 1)

Issue: Section B does not include CLINS for the 5th optional 6 month Period of Performance.

The government is requested to clarify if pricing for the 5th optional 6.

ANSWER: The 52.217-8 extension is not separately priced. IAW with 52.217-8, the Government may require continued performance of any services within the limits and at the rates specified in the contract.

101. Amendment 002 RFP Reference: “Offeror shall insert Government estimated plug number in their proposed price in addition to any applicable General and Administrative (G&A) and/or Overhead (OH) rate applicable in accordance with FAR Part 31 and their accounting system.” Supporting Information:  Supporting data, including labor rates and hours, burden rates, material lists and costs, travel charges, and “other direct costs” used in developing the cost/price breakdown shall be furnished.  The supporting data for “other direct costs” shall include an itemization of those costs and an explanation and justification for each cost so itemized.

 The Government is requested to clarify this directive for itemized cost information to support ODC and travel amounts, in consideration of the fact that these values are plug numbers provided by the Government. 

[bookmark: _GoBack]ANSWER: IAW with Amendment 1, the RFP states: Offeror shall insert the Government estimated ODC plug number identified below in their proposal.  In addition, within their cost proposal, offerors shall identify any applicable General and Administrative (G&A) and/or Overhead (OH) rates in accordance with FAR Part 31 and their accounting system.   Amendment 3 amended the supporting information bullet in Section L.  Please see Amendment 3. 

102. As a follow-up to Question/Answer #5/24, does the government require a Hubzone Small Business to be represented on the Small business participation plan of a large offeror?

ANSWER: IAW the RFP and answers to questions 5 and 24, offerors are required to propose small business subcontracting goals.  

103. As a follow-up to Question/Answer #5/24,  Does the government require a WOSB Small Business to be represented on the Small business participation plan of a large offeror?

ANSWER: See the answer to question 102. 

104. As a follow-up to Question/Answer #5/24,  Does the government require a VOSB Small Business to be represented on the Small business participation plan of a large offeror?

ANSWER: See the answer to question 102. 

105. As a follow-up to Question/Answer #5/24,  Does the government require a SDVOSB Small Business to be represented on the Small business participation plan of a large offeror?

ANSWER: See the answer to question 102. 

106. As a follow-up to Question/Answer #5/24,  Does the government require a SDB Small Business to be represented on the Small business participation plan of a large offeror?

ANSWER: See the answer to question 102. 

107. As a followup to Question/Answer #70, will travel to a secondary place of performance be reimbursed?

ANSWER: IAW the RFP and the answer to question 70, Travel to locations outside of Mechanicsburg, PA or Washington, DC, will be reimbursed on a Cost basis in accordance with the terms of the Federal Travel Regulation (FTR) if required.  

108. Question: Our Company has multiple workforces that can be utilized to provide best value to the Government within each of the labor categories.  Additionally, we would like to include in our rate submission a reflection of how we intend to use our substantial small business team to deliver on task orders awarded under this contract.  In order to do so, we would like to reflect multiple rates per labor category in our pricing submission.  Can the Government please confirm that the PIRMDS2 Labor Rate Table spreadsheet may be altered to accommodate multiple fully burdened hourly labor rates within each labor category so long as the total hours per labor category remain unchanged and all hours proposed for each labor category meet the minimum labor category descriptions?  Additionally, can the Government please confirm that populating the table in this manner will not be considered an “alternate proposal” under the RFP directions to offerors? 

ANSWER:  IAW the RFP, offerors are required to complete Attachment IV, PIRMDS Firm Fixed Price Labor Rate Table with a single fully burdened FFP rate. 
109. Question: The Government added the following instructions: 
Offerors shall complete the Firm Fixed Price CLINS in the schedule B with sum of each year in Attachment IV, PIRMSD2 Firm Fixed Price Labor Rate Table.  Offerors shall plug in the sum of their total estimated cost for the CPFF CLINs.  
We understand the hours provided in Attachment IX for the CPFF portion represent the hours to be priced for each of the five years and the corresponding cost build included for each year.  Our interpretation is that we would replicate Column B hours five times in order to show a cost per LCAT for each option year.  The resultant total price per year would be included in Schedule B.  Please confirm this approach would not be considered an alteration of Attachment IX.  
ANSWER:  The Government does not intend to tell offeror’s how to structure its cost proposal. Attachment IX provides the annual estimated hours pre LCAT.  Offerors are permitted to submit its cost proposal in the format they deem most appropriate to provide the information required in the RFP. Offeror shall use the estimated hours included in Attachment IV and IX. 
110. Pricing updates included in Amendment 0002 require edits to team pricing and leaves little time for final adjustments to proposals.  Please extend the due date for proposals through July 3, 2015 to allow bidders to complete pricing, packaging and mailing of the final proposal.  

ANSWER:  Amendment 3 extended the RFP closing date to July 2 at 12:00 PM ET. Please see Amendment 3. 
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